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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Natures Basket Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statentents
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Natures Basket Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generaily accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its
loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
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including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Aundit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and mainiain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to evenis
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

* Dvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. <
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matiers, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, inciuding any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requiremnents regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our audifor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (i} {vi) below on reporting under Rule 11{g).

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financiai statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31,2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

() The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 2
(i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" 1o this report.

(h) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V io the Act;
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(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and {o
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1.

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 28 to the financial statements:

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 40 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 40 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shalil,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording of audit trail
{edit log) facility and the same has operaied throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for direct
changes to data when using certain access rights as described in note 41 to the financial
statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Bon Prndeat Yot

per Jai Prakash Yadav

Partner

Membership Number: 066943
UDIN: 24066943BKGFPE2572
Place of Signature: Kolkata

Date: May 10, 2024
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of eur report of even date

Re: Natures Basket Limited (*“the Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i)(a)A)

(i)a)(B)

(i}(b)

(1)(c)

(1))

(i)e)

(ii)(a)

(ii)(b)

(iii)(a)

(iii}(b)

(if)(c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

All the Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management
during the year but there is a regular programme of verifying them once in three years which,
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

As represented to us by the management, there is no immovable property (other than
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024,

As represented to us by the management, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Iransactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable and the coverage
and procedure for such verification is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed.

As disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks and/or financial
institutions during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. We
have been informed that the Company is not required to file quarterly return / statements for
March 31, 2024 and hence there is nothing to report in clause 3(ii)(b) of the order.

During the year the Company has given interest free advances in the nature of loans to
employees aggregating to Rs 52.24 lakhs and the balance outstanding as at March 31, 2024
agpregates to Rs 59.55 lakhs.

During the vear the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. —
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(iii)(d)

(itiY(e)

(1))

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)(@)

(vii)(b)

(vii)

(ix)(a)

(ix)(b)

(ix)(c)

The Company has not granted loans or advances in ihe nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As represented to us by the management, there are no loans, investments, guarantees, and
security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As represented to us by the management, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act, for the products/services of the
Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, and other
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

As represented to us by the management, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any
transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

As represented to us by the management, the Company has not been declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

Based on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet and information, explanations and
representations provided to us, term loans were applied for the purpose for which they were
obtained.
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(ix)(d)

(x)(e)

(ix)(D)

(X))

(x)(b)

(xi)(a)

(xi)(b)

(xi)c)

(xii)

(xiif)

(xiV)@)

(xiv)(b)

(xv)

(xvi)(a)

(xvi)(b)

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
used funds raised on short-term basis aggregating to Rs. 6,307.48 lakhs for long-term
purposes.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly. the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
turther public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the vear under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As represented to us by the management, no material fraud by the Company or no material
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by
cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represemied to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) & (¢} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of the Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not
applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii)
of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicabie to the Company.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv} of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-[A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b} of the Order is not applicable to
the Company. —
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(xvi)(c)

(xvi)}d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

{xix)}

(xx)

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

As represented to us by the management, the Group has 4 Core Investment Companies as a
part of the Group.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 1,369.78 lakhs and Rs. 2,264.27
lakhs in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial vear
respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Omn the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statermnents, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fali due.

The Company is not required to spend any amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility
under sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act as the Company has average losses during the
three immediately preceding financial years. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 3¢1003E/E300005

IO Lo i

per Jai Prakash Yadav

Partner

Membership Number: 066943

UDIN: 24066943BKGFPE2572

Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: May 10, 2024
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Annexure ‘2’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even daie on the Financial Statements of
Natures Basket Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Natures Basket
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial staternents
of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicabie
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated etfectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Conirols With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
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assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with autherisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Conirols With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial conirols with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the rigk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

A 1 ',5' a/f . \
per Jai Prakash Yadav (e | Kolkata ]
Partner “Q\g.x'\_\ ,'//f
Membership Number: 066943 N K I

N~

UDIN: 24066943BK GFPE2572

Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: May 10, 2024



 Matures Basket Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Particulars
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets
Goodwill
Cther Intangible assets
Financial assets

fiy Investments

(i} Other financial assets
Tax assets (net)
Other assets
Total non-current assets (A)

Current assets
tnventories
Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables

{fi} Cash and cash equivaients

{ilf} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
fiv) Other financial assets
Other assets
Total current assets (B)

TOTAL ASSETS (A+B)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity share capital
Gther equity

Total Equity (C)

LIABILITIES
Non-current liahilities
Financial iatilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Lease liabilities
Provisions
Total Mon Current Liakilities (D)

Current liabilities
Contract liabilities
Financtal fiabilities
(i} Borrowings
(i) Lease liabilities
{iii) Trade payables
- Total cutstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises
- Total gutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities
Other current fiabilities
Provisions
Total current liabilities (E)

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (C+D+E}

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements,

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For 5.R. Batlibol & Ca. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number - 301003E/E300005

Un Prafeadspmdn

Jai Prakash Yadav SACHIN AGARWAL

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Notes
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SRIKANTH RAMACH

As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2 in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
3,064.09 273087
16,089.48 13,549.06
520.76 530.76
4581 2880
42.34 39.28
1.259.27 137240
4708 3374
22113 53.28
21,299.76 18,338.19
4,342.00 3,586.22
436.41 30061
232.55 130.16
124 2.54
239.15 377
1,232.14 947.94
6,543.49 5.004.64
27,843.25 23,342.83
64,128.00 57,318.00
[70,443.25) {65,262.40)
(6,315.25) (7,944.40)
333740 391919
15,898.35 13,147.92
13011 109.24
19,365.86 17,176.35
268,17 336.77
681921 6,261.96
1.848.83 1.855.55
60742 B02.29
4,534.48 4,545.13
388.52 35046
260.98 119.08
65.03 31.64
14,792.64 14,110.88
27,843.25 23,342.83
MURTHY GOPISHETTY

Partner
Membership number - 066943

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 10, 2024

Whole-time Director Director
DIN: 09030513 / DIN: 07383522
SANDEEP KUMAR BANMKA SH KUMAR AGARWAL

Ciief Financial Officar

Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 10, 2024




Natures Basket Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars

Income

Revenue fram operations
QOther income

Total income ()

Expenses

Purchases of stock-in-tracle

Changes in inventaries of stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense

Other expenses

Total Expenses (1)

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) [(1}-(1D)]

Deprediation and amartisation expense
Finance costs

Loss before tax (111}

Tax expense

Current tax

Deferred tax

Loss for the year (V)

Other Comprehensive income

items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Statement of Profit and Loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profitand Loss

Other Comprehensive income for the year (V)

Total Comprehensive income for the year [(IV)+ (V)]

Earnings per share - Basic and Diluted (%)
[Nominal value per equity share ¥ 10 {March 31, 2023: T 10}

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of these Financial Statements.
This is the Statement of profit and loss referred 10 in our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number - 301003E/E300005

O Tt cad

Partner
Membership number - 066943

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 10, 2024

For the Year ended For the year ended
MNotes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Zin lakhs % in fakhs

20 28,578.32 27441.25
21 804.39 3568.58
30,382.71 27.809.83

21,880.73 20,097.80
22 (755.78} (444.84)
23 3,025.24 2587897
25 487348 551275
23.023.67 27,753.68

1,359.04 56.15

3,26 3,80760 337250
24 272882 2,320.43
(5,177.38) (5.637.18)

32 E -

(5.177.38) (5.637.18)

34 (347) oo
(3.47) 3.00

{5,180.85) (5,634.18)

27 {0.87) {0.99)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

SACHIN AGARWAL RIKANTH RAM DRA MURTHY GOPISHETTY
Whole-time Director Director
DIN: 09030513 5 DIN: 07383622
'
SR
SANDEEF KUMAR BAMNKA VIKASH KUMAR AGARWAL
Chief Financial Officar Company Secretary

Ptace: Kolkata
Date: May 10, 2024




Natures Basket Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

A. Equity share capital As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shares % in lakhs No, of shares ¥ in lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year 57,31,80,000 57,318.00 55,93,80,000 55,938.00
Shares issued during the year 5,81,00,000 6,810.00 1,38,00,000 1,380.00
Balance at the end of the year 64,12,80,000 64,128.00 57.31,80,000 57,318.00
B. Cther Equity Reserves and items of Otl'ter
Surplus Comprehensive
Income {(OCI)
Net gafn/ (loss)
on Fair Value
Retained earnings Through OCI: Total
Equity
Instruments
¥ in lakhs ¥ in Lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Balance as at April 01, 2022 (59.635.34) 711 (59,628.23)
Loss for the year {5,637.18) - (5,637.18)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans {net of tax) 3.00 g 3.00
Balance as at March 31, 2023 (65,269.51) 7.1 (65,262.40)
Loss for the yaar (5,177.38) E (5,177.38)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans {net of tax) (3.47) - (347
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (70,450.36) 7.11 (70,443,25)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Charterad Accountants
Firmn registration number - 301003E/E300005

me;kf;"i::f*“‘“‘”" 4

Partner
Membership number - 066343

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 10, 2024

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 10, 2024

7

SACHI N AGARWAL

' SANDEEF KUMAR BANICA
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

SRIKANTH RAMACHA)
Director

DIN: onsse‘i@
\

L

SH KUMAR AGARWAL
Company Secretary

MURTHY GOPISHETTY



Natures Basket Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax

Adjfustments :

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Provision/(Reversal) of net liability on termination of lease
Provision/{reversal of provisions) for bad & doubtful debts (net)
Provision/{reversal of provisions) for doubtful store lease deposit
Pravision/{reversal of provisions) for cbsolete inventory

Finance costs

Interest income

Covid - 19 related rent concessians

Cash from operations before working capital changes

Working capital changes:

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in other financial assets

Increase in other assets
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables
(Decrease)/Increase in financial liabilities
{Decrease)/Increase in othar cureent liabilities
(Decrease)/Increase in contract liahilies
Increase/{decrease) in provisions

Cash used in aperating activities
Income tax refund/(paid)

Net cash used in operating activities (A)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including other intangible assets,

capital work in progress and capital advances
Praceeds fram sale of property, plant and equipments
Investrnent in bank deposits

Purchases of investments

Redemption / maturity of bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities (B}

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of share capital

Payrment of lease liabilities (principal

Praceeds from non-current borrawings

Repayment of non-current borrowings

MNet movernent in current borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash generated from financing activities (C)

Net Increase/{Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Camponents of cash and cash equivalents :

Balance with banks in current accounts

Balance with credit card, e-wallet companies and others
Cash on hand

Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10)

Notas

26
25
21
25
25

24
21
27

10
10
10

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T in lakhs 2 in lakhs

(5.177.38) {5,637.18)
3,807.60 337290
16.45 8.15
{612.29) 48.17)
{15.69) 5377

- (5.64)
191.4%) 115.04
2,728.82 2,320.43
1125.93) {126.34)

= (2.04)
530.09 43.92
{664.29) {559.88)
{13647) {169.57)
{167.50) {82.56)
(284.16) {245.37)
{(5.52} 439.15
{62.21} 46.75
141.89 (35.81)
(68.50) 29.15
50.79 {16.30)
[665.98) (545.52)
(10.64) 95.70
(676.62) (449.82)
(1,573.87) (407.96)
2502 503

- 0.5

(3.06) -

- 24.24

0.51 357
(1,551.40} {375.62)
6,810.00 1,330.00
(1,712.21) {1,819.18)
1,391.00 2,108.95
1,588.01) {1,483.77)
17247 2,7872.71
(2,742.84) {2.312.69
2,330.41 661.02
102.39 (164.42)
130,16 294,58
232.55 130.16
84.80 35.67
95.80 63.23
51.95 31.26
232.55 130.16




Natures Basket Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year endad March 31, 2024

Change in liabilities arising from financing activities : ¥ in lakhs
Particulars As an Cash flows Non-cash Ason
April 01,2023 | Inflow/(outflow) changes March 31, 2024
N i i ities of |
on current .borrowmgs (includes current maturities of iong 5,476.08 9701 ) 527907
term borrowings)
5 lud "
LCurrent borrf)wmgs (excludes current maturities of long 4705.07 17247 . 4877.54
terrm barrowings)
Lease Lizbilities (refer note 29) 15,00347 (1,712.21) 4,455.92 17,747.18
% in lakhs
Particulars As on Cash flows Non-cash As on
April 01, 2022 | Inflow/{outflow) changes March 31, 2023
Non current .borrowmgs {includes current maturities of long 4850.90 63518 . 5.476.08
term borrowings}
C t b i ifies of |
urren orrf)wlngs {excludes current maturities of lang 191736 278771 ) 4705.07
term barrowings)
Lease Liabifities {refer note 29) 12,133.76 (1,819.17) 4,688.88 15,003.47

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

This is the Cash Fow Staterment referred to in our report of even date.

For S.R. Batlibai & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration nurmber - 301003E/E300005

Jex l":f;‘**”“"“'_'

Partner
Membership numnber - 066343

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 10, 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

SACHIN AGARWAL
Whole-time Director

SANDEEP
Chief Financial Cfficer

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 10, 2024

AR BANKA

SRIKANTH RAMACHAND)

Director
DIN: 07383622

VIKASH KUMAR AGARWAL

Company Secretary

MURTHY GOPISHETTY




Natures Basket Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Corporate Information

Natures Basket Limited ("the Company”) is a Public Limited Company under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India, cursuant to
the certificate of incorporation dated May 29, 2008, under the corporate identity number U15310WB2008PLC244411 having its registered office
at Duncan House, 31, Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata - 700001. The Company is in the business of selling Premium Gourmet products,

2.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule 11|
to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111}, as applicable to the Ind AS financial statements.

Accerdingly, the Company has prepared these financial statements which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended as on that date, and acccunting policies and
ather explanatory infermation (together hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”).

These finarcial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies, set out below and were consistently applied to all
periods presented unless otherwise stated.

These financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved for issuance in accordance with the resolution
passed by the Board of Directors on May 10, 2024.

{b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under historical cost convention, except for the following assets and liabilities,
which had been measured at fair value as required by the ralevant Ind AS:

- Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding Financial Instruments);
- Defined Employee Benefit Plans

(c) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (¥}, which is also the Company’s furctional currency. All amounts have heen rounded off
to the nearest Lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

(d) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires managernent to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the apglication of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclasures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. These
Jjudgements and estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the relevant facts and circumstances, having regard to previous
experience, but actual results may differ materially from the amounts included in the financial statements,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the years In which
the estimate is revised and future years affected.

The information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting palicies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are as given below:

{i) Useful life and residual vaiue of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - Note 2.2 {c), 2.2 (e) & 3

{iD) Determining the fair values of investments - Note 2.2(g) & 4

{iii) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihcod and magnitude of an
outflow of resources - Note 2.2 (j}, 2.2(k}, 15 & 28 (a)

(iv} Measurement of defined benefit cbligations: key actuarial assumptions - Note 2.2} & 34

v} Impairment of financiai assets: key assumptions used in estimating racoverable cash flows - Note 2.2 (g) & 36

{wi) Non recognition of defarred tax assets - Note 2.2 (p} & 32

{vH) Discounting rate and lease term for accounting of Right-of-use assets and lease liabilides under Ind AS 116 - Note 2.2(0) & 29

2.2 Material accounting policies information

(a) Current and non-current classification

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle or
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading or

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or




Natures Basket Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle or

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading or

- it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting pericd, or

- There fs no uncenditional right to defer the settlernent of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The terms of the liakility that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settiement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
dassification.

The Company dassifies all other liahilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabifities are classified as nen-current assets and liabilities respectively.

{b} Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transaction, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate
prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value ir: a foreign currency are transfated into the
functicnal currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based an
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of initial transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

{c) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Recognition and measurement
ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost fess accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment lasses, if any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price inclusive of non-refundable duties and taxes, incidental
expenses, erection/commissicning expenses, borrowing cost, any diractly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its
intended use and costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Trade discounts and rebates are
deducted from the purchase price. Expenditure incurred in setting up of stores are capitalised as a part of lease hold improvements,

A fixed asset is eliminated from the financial staterents on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Ary gain or
foss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment s recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values on the basis of useful lives prescribed in
Schedule I to the Act and based on management's estimate of useful lives. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are
realistic and reflect fair approximation of the pericd over which the assets are likely to be used. Expenditure in respect of improvements, etc,
carried out at the rented / leased premises are depreciated over the initial period of lease or useful life of assets, whichever is lower. The residual
values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Degreciation is calculated on a straight line basis using the rates arrived based on the usefui lives estimated by the management, which are as
follows:

Class of assets Management estimate of useful life
Plant and machineries 7.5 10 15 years

Computer hardware 3 to 6 years

Furniture and fixtures 3to 15 years

Vehicles 5 years

Office equipments 5 years

Based on the internal assessment carried out by the in-house technical team, management believes that the residual value and useful lives as
given above best represents the period over which management expects to use these assets, Hence, the useful lives for these assets are different
from the useful lives as prescribed under part C of schedule 1! of the Companies Act, 2013.

Capital work in progress (CWIP)

Capitai work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development net off impairment loss, if any, as
at the balance sheet date. Directly attributable axpenditure incurred on project under implementation are shown under CWIP. At the point when
an asset is capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the capital work in progress is transferred to the agpropriate category
of property, plant and equipment.




Natures Basket Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(d) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date, to determine if there is any indication of impairment based on the
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recogrized wherever the carrying amount of assets exceeds its recoverable amount which is the
greater of net selling price and value in use of the respective assets. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time vaiue of money and risk specific to the
asset. For the purpose of assessing impairmeant, assets are grouped at the lowest ievels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

(e} intangible assets and Goodwill

Goodwill arising on business acquisition is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, which includes purchase price and any cost directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the conditions necessary for it {0 be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Following initial

recognition, intangible assats are carried at cost [ess any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Finite life intangible assets are amortised using straight line method
over the period of their expected useful lives. Estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Class of assets Management estimate of useful life
Computer softwares 6 to 10 years
Goodwill indefinite life

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal {ie., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisaticn method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to medify the amortisatior perfod or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, The assessment of indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

{f) Inventories
Inventories of traded goods and packing materials are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present condition and location. Cost is determined under moving weighted

average method. Costs of purchased inventory are detarmined after deducting rebates and discounts.

QObsolate, slow moving and damaged stock is valued at lower of cost less provision and net realisable value, Such inventories are identified from
time to time and where necessary a provision is made for such inventories.

Nat realisabla value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

(g) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other camprehensive income
(FYQCI), and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The dlassification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company's
business mode! for managing themn. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Company has appfied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing compenent or for
which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under ind AS 115.

Upen initlal recognition, the Company can elect to classify irevocably its equity investments as equity mstruments designated at fa;r value
through OCl whan they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Pres and are not heidjot g. The
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Natures Basket Limited
MNotes to financial statements as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2024

classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument Basis. Equity instruments which are held for frading and contingent consideration
recognised oy an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FYTPL.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amartised cost or fair value through OC|, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are
‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI}' on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through income
statement, irrespective of the business modal.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the finandial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows white financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCH are heid within a business madel with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling,

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
« Financial assets at amortised cost

« Financial assets designated at fair value through OCl (equity instruments)

« Financial assets at fair value threugh profit or loss (FVTPL}

Financial assets at amortised cost
A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
k) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
orincipal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (FIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included in firance income in the profit or loss. The (osses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The
Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, loans and other financial assets,

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit
and loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the
cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCi are not subject
to impairment assessment. )

The Company elected to classify irrevocabiy its equity investments in subsidiaries under this category.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL):

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with nat changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

This category includes invastments in units of mutual funds, alternative investment fund. It also includes equity investments which the Company
had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCL. Dividends on equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss when the right of payment has been established.

Derecognition:

Afinancial asset is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows fram the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an chligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangament; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferrad control of the asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs

are based con the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contraetan
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expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the criginal effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms,

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are due for a pericd greater than a predefined period as per
management policy. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any cradit
enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reascnable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
fiows.

Financial Liahilities
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate

(EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amertisation
process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on aequisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EiR.
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires,

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events,

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, equity share etc, at fair value at each halance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes

piace either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liakility, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when gricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nen-financial asset 1akes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available o measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilites for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted} market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observabie
Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabifities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determinas whether transfers have
accurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to tha fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting peried.

The management determines the policies and procadures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as unguoted financial assets measured
at fair value, etc.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents
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(i} Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit abligaticns are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as and when the related services are
provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amaount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the ameunt of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined centribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-emgloyment benefit plan under which an entity pays a fixed contribution and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amcunts. Obligaticns for contributions to provident and superannuation fund are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in Statement of Profit and Loss when the contributions to the respective funds are due,

Defined bhenefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution pian. The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a
defined benefit plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amcunt and deducting the fair value of any plan assets,

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projectad unit credit method. Wher the
caleufation resufts in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the
farm of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest an the net
defined benefit liakility and the return on plan assets {exciuding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. Past sarvice costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier
of:

- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Cempany recognises the follewing changes
in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs cemprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtaliments and non-routine settlements; and
- Net interest expense or income

Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entiled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The
expected cost of accumulating compensated zbsences is measured on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method, for the unused entitlement that has accumulated as at the balance sheet date. Non-accumulating compensated absences are
recognised (n the period in which the absences occur.

(j) Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as & result of a past event, the Campany has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated refiably,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recagnised as a pravision is the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation st the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

in an event when the time value of money is material, the provision is carried at the present value of the cash flows estimated to settle the
obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the

statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

(k) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from a past event, with the resolution of the contingency dependent an uncertain future
events, or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probakle that an outflow of resources will ba required to settle the
obligation. A contingent lability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be
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() Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on delivery of merchandise to the customer, when the property in the goods is transferred for a price,
and significant risks and rewards have been transferred and no effective ownership control is retained. Revenue towards satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured at the ameunt of transaction price allocated to that performance obligation. Amounts disclosed as revenue

are net of returns and allowances, trade discounts, volume rebates, Goods and Services tax (GST) and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Where the Company is the principal in the transaction, the sales are recorded at their gross values, Where the Company is effectively the agent in
the transaction, the cost of the merchandise is disclosed as a deduction from the gross value,

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be allocated. Any amounts received for which the Company does not have any separate performance obligaticn are
considered as a reduction of purchase costs.

The Company has contracts with concessionaire whereby it facilitates in the sale of products of these concessionaires. The inventory of the
cencessionaira does not pass to the Company till the product is sold. At the time of sale of such inventory, the sales value along with the cost of
inventory is disclosed separately as sale of goods and cost of goods sold and forms part of Revenue in the Statement of Profit and Loss, only the

net revenue earned i.e. margin is recorded as a part of revenue. Thus, the Company is an agent and records revenue at the net amount that it
retains for its agency services.

Sale of Services

Revenue from services rendered is recognised net of taxes as the service is performed based on agreements / arrangements with the concerned
parties.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Company transfers
the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract {i.e., transfers control
of tha related goods or services to the customer).

Other operating revenue

Other operating revenue mainly represents recoveries made on account of advertisernent for use of space by the customers and other expenses
recovered from suppliers. These are recognised and recorded over time or at the point in time based on the arrangements with concerned
parties.

Loyalty Program

Sales is allocated between the loyalty programme and the other compenents of the transaction. The amount aflccated to the loyalty pregramme
is deferred, and is recognised as revenue when the Company has fulfilled its obligations to supply the discounted products under the terms of the
programme or when it is no longer probable that the points under the programme will be redeemed.

{m) Interest income

Interest income is recegnised based on time propaertion basis censidering the amount outstanding and using the effective interest rate (EIR).
Interest income is included as other income In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

{n) Expenses
All expenses are accounted for on accrual basis.

(o) Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees 1o determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate
the lease, if the use of such opticn is reascnably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis
and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the
lease term, the Company censiders facters such as any significant leasehold improvements under taken over the lease term, costs relating to the
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the availahility of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic
circumstances.

The Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for store. The Company assesses whather a contract comtains a lease, at the
inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a Jease If the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i} The Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Cormpany has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use assets (ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for al! lease
arrangements, in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve manths or less (short-term leases) and non-lease components (like
maintenance charges, etc). For these short-term {eases and non-fease components, the Company recognizes the lease rental payments as an
operating expense.

Certain fease arrangements includes the opticns to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liabitity adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives.

They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The present value of the expected cost to be incurred on removal of assets at the time of store closure (referred as "Decommissioning
liability") is included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Right-of-use assets are evaluated
for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable ameunt (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount Is determined for the Cash Generating Unit {CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liakilities are initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in suibstance fixed payments) iess any lease incentives receivable and amounts expected 1o be paid under residual value guarantees. Vartable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing
rates for similar term of borrowing as the leases, for the Company. After the commencement date, the amount cf lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made,

In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabifities Is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease
payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in
the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash
flows.

Short-term leases

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases {i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not cantain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term lease is recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company s a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the cantract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are ciassified as operating leases,

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arlsing as a
direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether 2 Covid-19 related rent
concession from a lessor is a lease modification, A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the
Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change under Ind AS 1186, if the change were hot a lease medification,
The amendments are applicable for annual reperting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2021,
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MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19 related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2027 to update the condition for lessees to apply
the relief to a reduction in lease payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022 from 30 June 2021. The company has applied this
amendment to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 in respect of lease agreements where neggtiations have bean
compieted and accounted the unconditional rent concessions as per Nate 29,

{p) Income tax

Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equity). Management periodicaily evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Ceferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases and accounting bases of assets and liabilities at the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax iosses can be utilized.,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is ne longer probabile that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-

assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probahle that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax iiabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax lfabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(q) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

(r) Borrowing cost

‘Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

{s) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable 1o equity shareholders of the company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit

or loss, for the periad attributable to equity shareholders of the company and the weighted average number of shares autstanding during the
period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

{t) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reperted using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a nen-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Cempany are segregated.

(u) Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present eamings before interast, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of
the statement of profit and loss,
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{v) Standard issued but not yet effective

There are no standards issued but not effective up to the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements.

(w) NMew and amended standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to
amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Company appiied for the first-time
these amendments.

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors,
It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact en the Company’s standalone firancial statements.
(i) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclesures that are mere useful by replacing the reguirement for entities to
disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material” accounting pelicies and adding guidance on how
entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisiens about accounting policy disclosures,

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or
presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

The Campany previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these amendments, the Company has recognised a
separate deferred tax asset in refation 1o its lease liahilities and a deferred tax liabifity in relation to its right-of-use assets. Since, these balances
qualify for offset as per the requirements of paragragh 74 of Ind AS 12, there is no impact in the balance sheet. There was also no impact en
the opening retained eamings as at 1 April 2022.

Apart from these, consequential amendments and editorials have been made to cther Ind AS fike Ind AS 101, Ind AS 102, Ind AS 103, Ind AS
107, Ind AS 109, Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 34.

(%) Climate - refated matters

The Company considers climate-related matters in estimates and assumpticns, where appropriate. This assessment includes a wide range of
possible impacts on the Company due to both physical and transition risks. Even though the Company believes its business medel and
products will still be viable after the transition to a low-carben economy, climate-related matters increase the uncertainty in estimates and
assumptions underpinning several items in the financial statements. Even though climate-related risks might not currently have a significant
impact on measurement, the Company is closely menitoring relevant changes and developments, such as new climate-related legislation. The
items and considerations that are most directly impacted by climate-related matters are:- Useful life of property, plant and equipment.

When reviewing the residual values and expected useful lives of assets, the Cempany considers climate-related matters, such as climate-related
legislation and regulations that may restrict the use of assets or require significant capital expenditures.
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3
3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment % in lakhs
Leasehold Plant and Computer = Furniture 8 Office
B —— Vehicles i , Total
improvements machineries hardwares fixtures Equipments
ros i maunt

As at April 01, 2022 3,480.32 2,069.66 344.93 1.50 1,619.98 413.73 793013
Additions during the year 205.47 78.39 28.09 = 67.92 5846 438.34
Disposals during the year 3.50 20.80 51.78 5 5.23 16.52 97.84
As at March 31, 2023 3,682.29 2,127.25 321.23 1.50 1.682.67 455.67 8,270.63
Additions during the year 655.05 27547 4977 = 35822 142.15 1,480.67
Dispasals during the year 533 188.31 D - 56.68 3.98 25430
As at March 31, 2024 4.332.01 2,214.41 371.00 1.50 1.984.22 593.84 9,497.00
Accumulated depreciation

As at April 1, 2022 1,995.44 1419.22 296.62 1.28 812.54 383.20 4,888.31
Depreciation for the year (refer note 26) 374.95 166.23 18.80 0.09 156.37 21.69 738.12
Disposals for the year 212 17.35 49.21 - 2.89 15.10 86.67
As at March 31, 2023 2,368.27 1,568.10 266.21 137 866.02 368,719 5.539.76
Depreciation for the year (refer nate 26) 709.72 159.80 30.36 004 180.75 2410 1,105.98
Disposals for the year 4.34 171.71 - - 3302 376 212.83
As at March 31, 2024 3.073.65 1.556.19 297.17 1.41 1.113.75 390.73 6.432.91
Net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2024 1,258.36 658.22 73,83 0.09 870.47 203.11 3,064.09
As at March 31, 2023 1,314.62 559.15 55.02 013 716.63 85.88 2,730.87

Naote:
1. Refer note 14 for hypothecation of Praperty, plant and equipment.

2. Refar note 28 for disclosure of contractual commitments for acquistion of Property, plant and equipment.

3.2 Capital work in progress T in lakhs
As at April 01, 2022 127.34
Addition during the year 13.78
Less : Capitalised to Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets during the year 141.12

As at March 31, 2023 =
Addition during the year -
Less : Capitalised to Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets during the year <

As at March 31, 2024 -
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32 Qther Intangible assets and Goodwill Z in falths
QOther Intangible
assets - Computer Goodwill* Total
saftwares
Gross carrying amount
As at April 01, 2022 490.67 530.76 1,021.43
Additions during the year 5.56 = 5.56
Disposals during the vear - 5 =
As at March 31, 2023 4896.23 530.76 1,026.99
Additions during the year 31.74 B 31.74
Disposals during the year - - =
As at March 31, 2024 527.97 530.76 1,058.73

Accumulated amortisation

As at April 01, 2022 456.59 - 456.59
Amortisation for the year (refer note 26) 10.84 - 10.84
Disposals for the year = =

As at March 31, 2023 467.43 = 46743
Amortisation for the year {refer note 26) 1493 14.93

Disposals for the year &
As at March 31, 2024 482.36 - 482.36

Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2024 45.61 530.76 376.27

As at March 31, 2023 28.80 530.76 358.56

* Goodwill is considered to have an indefinite useful life taking into account that there are no technical, technalogical or commercial risks of obsolescence or limitations
under contract or law.

The Company tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount hes been determined based on velue in use for current
and previous financial years.

Vahse in use for Goodwill has been determined based discounted cash flow method, using future cash flows, after considering current economic conditions and trends,
estimated future operating results, growth rates and anticipated future economic conditions.

Basis the assessment, the management has concluded that there is no impairment in respect of Goodwiil.




Natures Basket Limited
Nates to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

As at As at
March 31,2024 _March 31, 2023
T tn lakhs 2 in lakhs
4 Investments
Non-current
Unquoted
Investments in equity instruments (at FYTPL)
The Saraswat Ca-operative Bank Limited: 2,500 equity shares of 210/~ each fully paid {March 31, 2023 2,500 equity shares) 7.36 7.36
investrnents in government securities (at amartised cost)
Matianal savings certificates 34.38 3192
42.34 39.28
As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

¥ in lakhs T in lakhs
Aggregate value of unguoted investments £234 39.28
Refer note 36 for infarmation abeout fair value measurements and credit and market risk on investments
5 Other financial assets
{Unsecured, considered good uniess otherwise stated)
As at Asat

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Zin lakhs 7 in lakhs
Non-current
Secutity deposits
- Considered good 1,200.60 1317.62
Bark deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 4341 39.52
National savings certificates pledged with government authorities* 15.26 15.26
1,259.27 1,372.40
Current
Security deposits
- Considered good 176.21 3.00
- Credit impaired 105.13 6145
281.34 64.49
impairment alfowance
- Cradit impaired {105.13) {61.49)
178,21 3.00
Employee loans & advances
Considered good 5295 3417
Credit impaired 73.00 75.00
14085 11217
Impairment allowance:;
Credit impaired {F78.00 (78.00)
§2.95 3417
239.15 37.17
*Pledged with excise department for liquor license
Refer note 36 for fair valle measurement,
6  Tax assets {net)
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T in lakhs in lakhs
Advance taxes {net} 47.08 33.74
47.08 33.74

» -
[/

| P I
¢ (Kolkata
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7 Other assets

(Unsecured and considered good) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2 in lakhs ¥ indakhs
Non-cymrent
Capital advances 220.94 53.05
Prepaid expenses 0.19 Q.23
221.13 53.28
Current
Prepaid expenses 7257 79.09
Advances for goods and services 144.75 132.25
Balance with Statutory / Government authorities 1,014.82 73560
1,232.34 947.94
& Inventories
{at lower of cost and net realisable value) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2 in lakhs Tin lakhs
Stock-in-trade 4,342.00 3,586.22
4,342.9.0_ 3,586.22
9 Trade receivables
{Unsecurag) As at As at
March 31. 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
¥ in lakhs 2 in lakhs
Considered good 496.41 300.61
Significant increase in credit risk 136.75 178.14
633.78 478.75
Impatrment allowance:
Significant increase n credit risk (1358.75) (178.14}
496.41 300.61
Trade receivables Ageing Schadule
As at March 31, 2024 7 in lakhs
Dutstanding for following perieds from due date of payment
Curent but L han & ths -
urent b ess than Bronths 12 years 2.3 years Moie than 3 Total
not due manths Tyear years
Undi Tvaisl
Il |s;..:uted Trade Retewvables 29437 S Ao
- considared goad
Undisputed Trade Receivabies
- which have significant - - 12.16 660 2.28 115.71 136.75
increase in credit risk
Total 294.37 202.04 12.16 6.60 2.28 115.71 633146
As at March 31, 2023 7 in lakhs
Cutstandihg for following periads from due date of payment
Curent but lessthan6  6months - More than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years Tatal
not due months 1year years
Undisputed Trade Receivables
A = 20864 197 300,61
— cansidered gaed
Undisputed Trade Receivables
- which have significant - 33.96 26.85 11.90 105.63 178.14
tncrease in credit fisk
Tatal 298.64 1.97 33.96 26.65 11.90 10563 478.75

1.Ne trade or other recevable are due from directars or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Mor any trade ar other receivable
are due fram firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a pariner, a director or a member.

2 There are no disputed trade receivables as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

3. Refer note 35 for receivables from related parties.
4. Refer nate 36 for fair vakue measurement.

10 Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks In current accounts
Balance with credit card, e-wallet companies and others
Cash on hand

11 Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and less than 12 manths

As at As at
March 21, 2024 ivlarch 31, 2023
Z in bakhs Zin lakhs

2480 3567
95.80 63.23
51.95 31.26
232.55 130.16
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7 in lakhs 2in lakhs
1.24 2.54
1.24 2.54
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12 Equity share capital

(a]

]

{c

t

(e

L=}

—

Authorisad:
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up:
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up

Reconcdiliation of the shares outstanding at the begirning and at the end of the year:

Equity shares

At the beginning of the year

Equity shares allotted pursuant to rights issue”
At the end of the year

As at Asat
March 31, 2024 fMarch 31, 2023
No. of shares ¥ in lakhs No. of shares T in lakhs
75,00,00,0C0 75,000.00 75,00,00,000 75,000.00
75,00,00,000 75,000.00 75,00,00,000 75,000.00
64,12,80,000 64,128.00 57,31,80,000 57,318.00
64,12,80,000 64,128.00 57.31,80,000 57,318.00
As at, As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shares Z in lakhs No. of shares ¥ in takhs
57,31,80,000 57,318.00 55,93,80,000 55,938.00
£,81.00,000 6,810.00 1,38,00,000 1,380.00
64,12,80,000 64,128.00 57,31,80,000 57,318.00

*During the year £,81,00,000 Equity Shares {March 31, 2023 1,38,00,000 Equity Shares) at an issue price of ¥ 10 per Equity Share were allatted at par by way of
rights issue to the eligible Equity Shareholders for an amount aggregating to ¥ 6,810.00 lakhs (March 31, 2023 7 1,380.00 lakhs)

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each heider of equity shares is entitled to cne vote per share. In the event of
figndation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferantial amounts.
The distributicn will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Particuiars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of fully paid up equity shares:

Spencer's Retail Limited, holding company and its nominee
Details of shares held by promoters

No. of shares at

51 No Mame the beginning of
the year
As at March 31, 2024
1 Spencer's Retail Limited 57,31,80,000
Asat March 31, 2023
1 Spencer's Retail Limited 55,93.50,000

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shares % No. of shares %
64,12.80,000 100.00% 57,31,80,000 100.00%
No. of shares at
Ch during th % duri
g O the end of the % of Total shares change during
year the year
year
6,81,00,000 64,12,80,000 100.00% 11.88%
1.38,00,000 57,31,80,000 100.00% 247%

Mane of the shares were fssued as bonus or bought back by the Company during the last five years.Further, no equity shares were alloted as fully paid up by way of
bonus shares or pursuant to contract{s) without payment being received in cash during last five years.
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13

(a)

{b}

14

(i)

{a)

Other equity
As at As at
March 31, 2024  _ March 31, 2023
% in lakhs T inlakhs
Retained earnings
Balance as at beginning of the year 165,269.57) (59,635.33)
Less for the year {5,177.38) {5,637.18)
Remeasurament of defined benefit plans (net of tax) {347 3.00
Balance as at end of the year (a) {70.450.36) (65,269.51)
Other Comprehensive Income
Balance as at the start and end of the year (b) 7.1 7.11
Total Other Equity (a) + (b) {70,443.25) {65,262.40)

Note:

Ratained earnings are the profits/{loss) that the Company has earned/incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to sharehofders. Retained earnings includes re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be
reclassified to Statement of profit and loss. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company and eligible for distribution to
shareholders, in case where it is having positive balance representing net earnings tilt date.

The Company has elected to recognise changes in fair value of certain investment in equity instrument in Other Cemprehensive Income. This
amount will be reclassified to retained earnings on derecognition of equity instrument.

Borrowings As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
 in lakhs % in lakhs
Non- current
{Secured)
Term loan from banks 372518 3,008.54
Less : Current maturities of long term borrowings (1,025.000 (640.22)
Less | Unamoertised Borrowing Cost (35.23) (30.19)
2,664.95 2,338.52
Term loan from finandal institution 1,604.16 252083
Less ; Current maturities of long term berrowings 916867 (216.67)
Less ; Unamortised Borrowing Cost {15.04) {23.49)
672.45 1,580.67
3,337.40 3,919.19

Security and other terms
Term Loan from banks

{i) T 50000 lakhs {March 31, 2023 : ? 900 lakhs) is secured by exclusive first charge over the moveable fixed assets of the Company financed aut of
this term loan. The said loan is payable after 24 months from the date of first disbursement in 60 equal monthly installments of ¥ 33.33 lakhs
each

{ii) ¥ 1,950.18 lakhs {March 31, 2023 :Z 609 lakhs) is secured by exclusive first charge aver the moveable fixed assets of the stores financed out of
this term loan. The said loan is payabie after 15 menths from the date of first disbursement in 20 guarterly installments with first 10 installments of
1.25% of total disbursement and next 10 installments of 8.25% of total disbursement.

{fiiy T 1,275.00 lakhs {March 31, 2023 : 1,500 lakhs) is secured by exclusive first charge over the moveable fixed assets of the stores financed out of
this term loan. The said |oan is payabie after 9 months from the date of first disbursement in 12 guarterly installments with first 4 installments of
5.00% of total disbursement and next 8 installments of 10.00% of total disbursement.

Term Loan from financiai institutions

{iv) Term loan fram financial institution with balance of T 1,604.16 lakhs (March 31, 2023 : ¥ 2,520.83 lakhs) is secured by first charge by way of
hypothecation over the entire current assets and maveable fixed assets of the Company financed out of this term loan. The said loan is repayable
after 12 menths from the date of first disbursement in 72 equal monthly Installments of I 76.38 lakhs each.

Interest rate on loans varies frem 9.75% p.a. to 11.20% p.a.
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¥ in lakhs
14 Borrowings (continued)
{b) |Maturity profile of non current borrowings Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Payable within 1 year 1.841.67 1.556.88
Payable betweer 1ta 3 years 2,337.49 3,290.06
Payable between 3 to 5 years 1,050.18 57627
Payable beyond 5 years - 106.57

{c} The Company’s bank loan agreements contain compliance with certain financial ratic which are not met as at and for the year ended March 31,
2024. On the basis of its past track record of timely interest and principal repayment, the Company, as at year end March 31, 2024 , had written to
its concerned fenders for condanation of the non-compiiance with such ratio and has obtained confirmation from bank that the bank do not plan
o take any action for such non-compliance. Accordingly, basis confirmation from bank, no adjustment has been made in the financial statements
as regards to classification of such loans and they continue to get classified as current / non-current as per the original terms of the foan

agreements.
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2 in lakhs % in lakhs
@i} Current
Qverdraft facility from bank {unsecured) 487754 4,705.07
Current maturities of long term borrowings {refer note - 14 (i) 1,941.67 1,556.89
6,819.21 6,261.96

a) ¥ 1,912.63 lakhs (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 1,810.10 lakhs) Overdraft facility is secured by extension of exclusive charge over the movable fixed assets

financed out of term loan issued by the same bank. It is payable on demand.

b) # 2,964.91 lzkhs (March 31, 2023 : ¥ 2,834.97 lakhs) Overdraft facility is secured by first Pari Passu charge by way of hypothecation cver entire

current assets of the Company. It is payable on demand.

Interest rate on Joans varies fram 10.10% p.a. to 11.70% p.a.

15  Provisions

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
% in lakhs 2 in lakhs
{i} Non-Current
Provisions for employee benefits :
Provision for gratuity (refer note 34) 65.22 46.32
Provision for compensated absences 64.89 62.92
130.11 109.24
i) Current
Pravisions for employea benefits ;
Provision for gratuity (refer note 34} 29.48 17.64
Provisian for compensated absences 26.55 5.00
56.03 22.64
Qther provisions :
Provision for tax disputes [refer note {a) below] 9.00 9.00
9.00 2.00
65.03 31.64

Total current provisions

{a} The management has estimated the provisions for pending disputes, claims and demands relating to Indirect taxes based on it's assessment of

probability for these demands crystallising against the Company in due course.

For the year For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
% in lakhs ? in lakhs
Opening balance 2.00 .00
Provision reversed during the year - -
Paid during during the year - -
2.00 9.00

Closing balance
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16 Trade payables

17

18

19

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smalf enterprises (refer note 30)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Zin lakhs % in lakhs
80742 602.2%
453448 4,545.13
5,141.90 5. 147.42

1. Refer nete 35 for dues to related parties.

2. Refer note 36 for fair value measurement.
3.Micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED Act) have been
identified by the Company on the basis of the information available with them and the auditors have relied on the same.

Trade payables Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2024

Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Total  outstanding  duass  of
creditors than  micro

enterprises and small enterprises
Total

other

As at March 31, 2023

Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of
creditors  other  than  micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Total

Other financial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due on bormowings

Security depesits
Payable to employees
Liability for capital goods

Other current liabilities

Statutory duss

Contract liahilities

Customer loyaity program liabilities
Advance from customers

Zin lakhs
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
607.42 = = 807,42
4,127.80 191.93 203.71 11.04 4,534.48
4,735.22 191.93 203.71 11.04 5,141.90
¥ in lakhs
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
602.29 - - = 602.29
4,058,710 24217 12072 124.14 4,545.13
4,660.39 242.17 120.72 124.14 5,147.42
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T in lakhs % in lakhs
32.13 46.15
2385 3.85
138.82 221.19
193.72 8127
388.52 358.46
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T in lakhs T in lakhs
26098 119,08
260.98 119.08
Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T in lakhs % in lakhs
84.3% 7264
18378 264.13
268.17 336.77
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20

21

22

22

24

Ravenue from operations

Revenue from cantract with customers
Sale of goods
Less: Goods and Services Tax

Cther operating revenue
- Display income
- Others

Tatal revenue from contract with customers

Other fncome

Interest income on
- Bank deposits
- Security deposits
- Others
Reversal of net liability on termination of lease
Covid - 19 related rent concessicns (refer note 2.2{a) & 29)
Miscellanecus income *

*includes provision / liabilities nc longer required, written back.

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Lass: Inventaries at the end of the year

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Gratuity defined benefit plan (refer note 34)
Centribution te provident and cther funds
Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interast expense cn

- Borrowings

- Lease liabilities {refer note 29}
Other costs

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year anded
March 31, 2023

T in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
29,987.75 27,924.55
211297} {1.982.60)
27,874.78 25,941.95
515.02 569.47
1,188.52 929.83
29,578.32 27,441.25

For the year ended
March 31, 2024
% in lakhs

in
120.13
269
61229

66.17

804.39

Fer the year ended
March 31, 2024
¥ in lakhs

3,586.22
4,34200

{755.78)

For the year ended
March 31, 2024
2 in lakhs

2,682.42
27.28
22122
94.32
3,025.24

For the year ended
March 31, 2024
¥ in lakhs

1,127.89
1,506.92
94.01

2,728.82

For the year ended
March 31, 2023
¥ in lakhs

357
11432
845
48.18
204
192.01

368.58

For the year ended
March 31, 2023
% in lakhs

314138
3,586.22

(444.84)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023
#in lakhs

2,256.56
2260
180.67
88.14
2,587.97

For the year ended
March 31, 2023
2 in lakhs

79689
1.396.87
126.67

2,320.43
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25

26

Other expenses

Power and fuef
Freight
Rent {refer note 2.2{0} & 29)
Repairs and maintenance - others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Advertisement and selling expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Payment to auditors
As auditor

- Audit fees

- Limited Review

- Reimbursement of expenses
Cormmunication expenses
Printing and stationery
Legal and consultancy expenses
Housekaeping expenses
Security expenses
Loss on sale of property, plant and eguipment (net)
Provision for bad & doubtful debts (net}
- Bad debts written off
- Provision/{reversal of provisicns) for bad & doubtiul debts
Miscellaneous expenses

Depreciation and amertisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {refer note 3)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer note 29}
Amortisation of other intangthie assets (refer note 3)

10.75
3.23
2.10

18.62

{34.31)

For the year ended
March 31, 2024
% in lakhs

1,326.80
373.73
743.64
618.14

67.63
67.53
687.53
8500

1608
17837
36.84
25.05
22479
256.55
1645

(15.69)
14504

4,873.48

For the year ended
March 31, 2024
% in lakhs

1,105.98
2,686.69
14.93

3,807.60

10.75
323
1.08

72.53

(18.75)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023
2 in lakhs

1,289.956
562.86
£39.62
578.79
13378

3785

1.052.20

8480

15.06
192.68
57.74
101.75
173.87
23358
6.15

53.77
22825

551275

For the year ended

March 31, 2023

¥ in lakhs
73812
2,623.94
10.84

3,372.90
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27 Earnings per share

2

{a

8

{b}

2

]

Basic and diluted EPS have been calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity halders of the Company by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year endded
__M.arch 31, 2023

Loss for the year (2 in Lakhs) (A) (5,177.38) (5637.18)
Weighted average number of equity shares () 56,29,85016 56,97,20,00G
Earnings per share —basic and diluted {face value per equity share of ¥ 10 each) (C = A/B) (T) 087 {0.99)

Commitments and contingencies

Contingent liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities for the year March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

There are numerous interpretative fssues refating to the Supreme Court (5C) judgement on PF dated February 28, 2019. As a matter of caution, the
Comparty has made a provision an a prospective basis from the date of the SC order. The Company will update its provision, on receiving further

clarity on the subjact

Commitments As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Z in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
)  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exacuted on 123.00 48.12
capital account not provided for (net of advances)
fne AS - 116 Leases
The movement in right-of-use {"ROU") assets and lease liabiities are as below :
Right-of-use Assets: -
Buildings Buildings
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars % in lakhs 2 in lakhs
Opening Balance 13,546.06 11,276.18
Addition (refer note (i) balow) 7.990.06 5436.89
Deletion (refer nata (i) below) (2,762.85} (540.07)
Depreciation (2,686.69) (2,623.94)
Closing Balance 16,089.48 13,549.06

(i) Includes & 288.91 lakhs (March 31, 2023: ¥ 172.72 lakhs) on aceount of prepaid expenses on fair valuation of security deposits.

{ii} Includes T 130.01 lakhs {March 31, 2023: 2 15.00 lakhs) pertaining to reversal of prepaid expenses (recognised on fair valuation of security

cleposits) an termination of leases.

Lease Liabilities :

Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars T [akhs % in lakhs
Opening Balance 1500347 12,133.76
Addition 770115 526417
Interest expenses incurred for the year (refer note 243 1,506.92 1,396.87
Deletion (3,245.23) (573.26)
Covid - 19 related rent concessions [refer note (i) below] - 2.04)
Payment of lease liabilities [refer note {v) below] (3.219.13) (3.216.04)
Closing Balance 17,747.18 15.003.47

(i) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated July 24, 2020 and June 18, 2021, issued an amendment to Ind AS: 116 “Leases”, by
Inserting a practical expedient with respect to "Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions” effective from the periad beginning on or after Apil 01, 2020,
Pursuant to the above amendment, the Company Ras applied the practical expedient during the year ended March 31, 2024 in respect of lease
agreements whera negotiations have been completed and accounted the unconditionai rent concessions of % Nil (March 31, 2023 - 2 2.04 lakhs) in
"Other income” (refer note 21).

The Company has further adjusted rent concessions amaounting to ¥ Nil {March 31, 2023 - ¥ 2.92 lakhs) during the year endad March 31, 2024, for
stores with variable lease payments in "Other expenses” {refar note 25) in the Statement of profit and loss.

(iv} Includes 1,506 92 lakhs (March 31, 2023: 7 1,396.87 lakhs) an account of interest expenses.
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29 Ind AS - 116 Leases (continued}

{v} The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease fabilities : Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Z in lakhs 2 in lakhs
Current lease lfabilities 1,848.83 1,855.55
Non currant lease iiabilities 15,898.35 13,147.62
17,747.18 15,003.47

(vi) The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at year end on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars 7 in lakhs T in lakhs
Less than one year 361982 3,348.01
One to five years 1177857 11,007 47
More than five years 11,754.88 7,004.05
Total 27,153.27 21,359.53

(viiThe effective discount rate for lease liabilities is 10% p.a, with maturity between 2025-2039.

{vifi) Amount recognised in Statement of profit and loss

£in lakhs 2 in Lakhs
Depreciation on Right of use assets (refer note 26) 2,686,69 262394
Interest an lease liabilities {refer note 24) 1,506.92 1,396.87
Rental expenses {exciuding taxes) recorded for short term leases (refer note 25) 318.19 26522
Rental expenses (exciuding taxes} recorded for variable leases (refer note 25) 124.85 34.89

4,636.66 4,320.41

{ix) The Company had total cash outflows for leases of T 3,662.16 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 : % 3,516.15 lakhs).

30 Information relating to Micro and Small Enterprises (MSME):

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T in lakhs T in lakhs

@ The principal amount and interest due there on remaining unpaid 1o suppliers under

Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as at the end of each accounting

year

Principal 58524 59290

interest 1279 9.39
(i} The amount of interast paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro and Small

Enterprises Develapment Act, 2006, along with the amount of payment made to

suppliers beyond the appointad day curing the year

Principal

Imterest
(i) The amount of interest due and payable for the pericd of delay in making payment

{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without

adding the interest specified under Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act,

2008

Principal

interest -
(iv) The amount of interest accrued and ramaining unpaid at the end of the year being

interest outstanding as at the beginning of the accounting year. 939 2.63
(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the sucreeding

years, until such date when interest dugs above are actually paid to the smali

22.18 939

enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as deductible expenditure under Section
23 of the Micre and Small Enterprises Devefopment Act, 2006.
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(a)

(b

(c

33

Contract balances under Ind AS 115

Trade receivables
Contract liabilities

Trade receivables are non-interast baaring and are generally on terms of 15 to 90 days.
Contract liabilities include advances received from customers against sale of gift cards and customer foyaity program.

Deferred tax assets/(fiabilities) (net)
Defarred tax assets / (labHities)

-Deferred tax liabilities
Right-of-use assets
Unamortised Barrawings Costs

Total

-Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
Carry forward business losses/unahsorbed depreciation
Disallowance under Tax Laws
Leasz Liabilitias
Others

Total

-Deferred tax assets {net)
-Unrecognised Deferred tax assets {net)*
-Deferred tax asset as per balance sheet

Asat As at
NMarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T in lakhs T in lakhs
49641 200.61
268.17 336.77
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2 in lakhs 2 in lakhs
{4,685.26) (394549}
{14.64) (7.79)
{4.699.90) {3,953.28)
84297 74247
13,552.55 13,600.88
110.54 5427
5,167.93 4,365.01
159.64 220.72
19,833.68 18,987.35
15,133.78 15,034.07
15,133.78 15,034.07

* Deferred tax asset has net been recognised in the balance sheet in the absence of evidence supporting reasonable certainty of future taxable
income when such losses would be set off and defarred tax assets to be recovered.

There being ne charge on account af tax expense, reconciliation between effective tax rate and statutory rate of tax is not disclesed.

The Company has business losses of ¥ 36,660.76 Takhs { March 31, 2023 : ¥ 37,617.80 Jakhs) and unsbsorbed depreciation of 7 9,879.60 lakhs
(March 31, 2023 : ¥ 9,088.51 lakhs) as at year end. Business loss can be carried forward far a maximum period of eight assessment years
immediately succeeding the assessment year to which the loss pertains. Unabsorbad depreciation can be carried forward far an indefinite period.

Segment information

The Company has a single operating segment i.e. organised retail. The Campany at present operates only in Indiz and therefore the analysis of
geographical segment is not applicable to the Company. There are no customers contributing mare than 70% of Revenue from aperations.

r—,

/25 kep
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34 Assets and Liahilities relating to employee defined benefits

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years ar more of service is entitled to Gratuity on terms
not less favorable than the provisions of the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972. The scheme is funded with an insurance company. The liability in
respact thereof is determined by actuarial valuation at the year end based on the Prejected Unit Credit Method and is recognized as a charge on

accrual basis.

The amounts recognised in the halance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation are as follows :

{a) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligations

Balance at the beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligations
Balance at the end of the year

{b) Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

Balance at the beginning of the year
Interest income

Benefits paid

Actuarial loss on plan assets

Balance at the end of the year

{c

HNet defined benefit liabilities / (assets)

Present value of defined benefit obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Net defined benefit liabilities [refer nate 15]

{(d) Expense recegnised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Current sarvice cost
interest cost
interest income

[

&

Remeasurement recognisad in Other Comprehensive Income

Actuaria| gain on defined benefit obligations
Actuarial loss on plan assets

Far the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

() The major category of plan assets as 4 percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows :

Investment with insurer
{a) Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate

Expected rate of return on assets
Future compensation grawth
Average expected future service
Employee turnovar

T in lakhs € in lakhs
111.81 106.02
21.57 22,60
8.27 747
{26.61) {19.53)
3.18 @.75)
T18.22 11187
47.86 65.20
256 3.94
(26.61) (19.53)
029} (1.75)
23.52 47.86
118.22 111.81
{23.52) (47.86)
94.70 63.95
21.57 2260
8.27 747
{2.56) (3.94]
27.28 26.14
3.18 @75)
0.29 175
347 (3.00)
100% 100%
7.20% 7.40%
7.20% TA0%
6.00% £.00%
28.5 years 29 years
Ranging grade wise Ranging grade wise
from from
12% to 67% 12% 10 67%

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published rates under Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14 -

Table ultimate).
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34 Assets and Liabilities relating to employee defined benefits (continued)

(h} The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniarity, promation and other relevant factors,
such as supply and demand in the employment market.

(it The Company expects to contribute T 35.90 lzkhs (March 31, 2023 : ¥ 17.64 lakhs) to gratuity fund in the next year.

il

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possibie changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumpticns, holding other assumptions canstant, would have
affected the defined benefit obligations by the amounts shewn below:

As at
March 31, 2022
Change in rate Increase Decrease
% in lakhs 2 in lakhs
{iy Discount rate {0.5% mavement) {1.63) 179
{ii} Future salary {0.5% movement} 1.80 {1.66)
(i) Attrition rate (0.5% movement) 022 0.33
(iv) Mortality rate (10% movement) 0.06 0.05)
Asat
March 31, 2023
Change in rate Increase Decrease
¥ in lakhs % in lakhs
® Discount rate (0.5% movement) 2.28) 2.53
(i)  Future salary (0.5% movement) 282 (2.59)
i) Attrition rate (0.5% movement) 12 0.25
(v} Mortality rate (10% movement} .06 (0.04)

(k} Risk Exposure
Thraugh its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to some risks, the mast significant of which are detailed below:

i

Interest rate risk: The defined benefit obligation cakulated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit
obligation will tend te increase.

(i} Salary Inflation risk: Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

(i) Demographic risk: This s the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and
retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upen the combination of salary
increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a
shart career employee typicaily costs less per year as compared lo a long service employee.

{l) Estimated future payments of undiscounted gratuity is as follows :
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
% in lakhs % in lakhs
Within 12 months 2948 1764
Between 1 and 5 years 0.93 078
Between & and 10 years 4.25 411
Beyond 10 years 2354 85.29
Total 118.24 111.82

34.1 Defined Contribution Plans:
The Company makes cantribution to pravident fund tawards retirement benefit plan for eligibie employees. Under the said plan, the Company is
required to cantribute a specified percentage of the employee's salaries to the fund benefits. During the yeer, based on applicable rates, the
Company has contributed and charged T 188.74 lakhs (March 31, 2023: ¥ 154.50 lakhs) in the Statement of prafit and loss,
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35 Related Party Disclosure
(i Holding Company Spencer's Retail Limited

(i} Entities under common contral (where transactions have taken place during the year / balances outstanding) :

3} RP Geenka International School
10} RPSG Ventures Limited

5) Kaldia Energy Limited

6) PCBL Limited

7} Saregama India Limited

8} Integrated Coai Mining Ltd

1) CESC Limited

2) Wosdlands Multispeciality Hospital Limited
3} Guiitfree Industries Limited

4} Herbalab India Private Limited

(iii)

Key Managerial Personnel

1) Mr. Devendra Chawla - Directar-{upto January 20, 2823)
2y M. Sachin Agarwal - Whole-time Direcior-(w.e.f. December 6, 2022)

3) Mr. G.R. Srikkanth - Directar

4} Mrs. Opal Micola treland - Director- (upto February 27, 2024}
5} Mr. Pradeep Chandradeep Das - Whole-time Director - (upta Dacember 02, 2022)
6) Mr. Neelesh Bothra - Chief Financial Officer {upto January 20, 2024}

7} M. RamaKant - Company Secretary -{upto October 10, 2022)

8)  Mr. Vikash Kumar Agarwal - Company Secretary -{w.e.f March 31, 2023)
9)  Sandeep Kumar Banka - Chief Financial Officer {w.e.f. April 18, 2024)

{iv} Details of transactions entered into with the related parties:
T in lakhs
Helding Company Entities under common contral Key Managerial Personnel
Particulars For the year For the year For the year For the year For the yeay For the year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Transactions :
Issue of share capital 581000 1,380.00 ]
Reimbursement of expenses 61.0% 1503 - - =
Elactricity expenses - - 54.33 5569 =
Purchase of goods 11737 226.76 2645 269
Sale of goods 20026 93.38 153.20 12272 2
Rentincome 5217 36.67 - - -
Rent expense 67.75 8259 -
Sacurity Deposit Received 31.20 - -
Recelving of services = 3.75 .01 s
Rendering of services 170
Tnward remittances of collection received 19.23 422 - =
Short term employee benefits - 6543 7527
Retirement benefits - 4.44 4.52
Reimbursement of expenses - - - - 5.13 -
(v) Details of transactions entered into with the related parties :
2 in lakhs
Holding Company Entities under common control Key Managerial Personnel
Balances outstanding :
As at As at As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 Marech 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances outstanding :
Trade receivables 5 = 3152 [ele)]
Trade payables 88.65 83.58 1414 0.37
Security depasit receivable 4.59 4.59

(i

(i

(i)

Motes:

The Company's principal related parties consist of Spencer's Retail Limited and key managerial personnel. The Company's material refated party transactions and outstanding balances are
with related parties with whom the Company routinely enters into transactions in the ordinary course of business.

Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to post-employment benefits and other long term emplayee benefits recognised as per Ind AS 19 - 'Employee Benefits' in the financial statements.
As these employees benefits are Jump sum amounts providad an the basis of actuarial valuation the same is not inciuded abave,

The Holding company has fumished 2 Comfort letter In respact of a term [oan obtained from financial institution/hank by the Company for a total sanction amount of Rs 3,000.00 lakhs
(March 31, 2023: Rs. 9,000.00 lakhs). The outstanding amount as at year end in the books is Rs 4,829.11 fakhs (March 31, 2023 : Rs 4,629.78 lakhs).
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26 Financial instruments - fair value r

and risk mar

{a} Accounting classification

(b)

(c]

The following table shews the carrying amaunts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities:

Financial assets
fnvestments
Equity shares (unquoted)

- Government securities
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Lease Liabilities

Trade payables

Other financial Uabilities
Total financial liabilities

Measurement of fair values

T in lakhs
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amaortised FVTPL Tatal Amortised VTPL Total
cost cast
= 736 7.3% % 736 7.26
24.98 = 34.98 3192 31.92
496.41 4%6.41 30061 ] 360,61
232.55 232,55 13016 3 13016
i24 124 2.54 - 2.54
1,498.42 1,498.42 T,409.57 - 1,409.57
2,263.60 7.36 2.270.96 1,874.80 7.26 1,882.16
10,156.61 10.156.61 10,181.15 10,181.15
17.747.18 = 17,747.18 1500347 15,003.47
5,141.50 5,141.90 514742 5147.42
388.52 3§8.52 358.46 358,46
33,434.21 > 33,434.21 30,680.50 - 30,690.50

The fair values of financial assets and liabitlties are inciuded at the amount that would be received on safe of asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair vaiues are consistent in all the years. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(i) The fair values of the investments in unquoted equity shares have been estimated using 2 DCF (Discounted cash flow) model The valuation requires management to make certain assumptions
about the model inputs, including forecasted cash flaws, discount rate, credit risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are
used in management’s estimate of fair value for these unquated equity investments.

{i} The carrying amount of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets, trade payables, current borrowings and other financial liabilities, measured at
costin the financial statements, are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short term nature. Where such items are non-current in nature, the same has been classified as
Level 3 and fair value determined using discounted cash flow basis. Non current barrowings including current maturity and security deposits (classified as other financial assets) are based on

discounted cash flow using an incremental borrowing rate.

Fair value hierarchy

The table shown below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by Rierarchy.

Financial assets
investments
Equity shares {unquoted)

2 in lakhs
Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 371, 2023
level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
736 7.36 7.36 7.36
- - 736 7.36 - - 7.36 7.36

The different levels have been defined below :

{i Level 1 (quated prices in active market) : This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured using quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabiiitles.
This includes listed equity insiruments which are traded in the stock exchanges and mutuaf funds that have net asset value as stated by the issuers in the published statements. The fair value
of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock sxchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing net assets value.

(i} Level 2 {valuation technique with significant cbeervabie inputs) : This level of erarchy includes financial assets and fiabiities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 7 that are observable for the assat or Hability, sither directly (ie, as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over-the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-

specific estimates.
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36 Financial instruments - fair value measurements and risk management (continued)

(iii) Level 3 {valuation technique with significant unobservable inperts} : This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilitias measured using inputs that are not based an obsarvable
market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation medet based on assumptions that are nefther supported by prices from observable current
market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on avallable market data. This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in Level 3.

There have been no transfers of investments between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value meaasurements during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, respectively.

{d) Financial risk management

i

=

The Company has expasure ta the following risks arising from financial instruments:
(i) Credit risk

{iiy Liguidity risk

(i) Market risk

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprises of Lease fiabilities, borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial lizbilfties is to
finance and support the operations ef the Cempany. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, security deposits, investments and cash & cash equivalents that
derive directly frem its operations.

The Company's primary risk management focus is to minimise potential adverse effects of these risks by managing them through a structured process of identification, assessment and prioritisation
of risks followed by co-ordinated efforts to monitor, minimize and mitigate the impact of such risks on its financial performance and capital. For this purpose, the Com pany has laid comprehensive
risk assessment and minimisation/mitigatian procedures, which are reviewed by the Management from time to time. These procedurss are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditfons
and to ensure that risks are controlled by way of properly defined framewark

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to cradit risk from its
operating activities (including trade receivable and security deposits} and from its financial activities including deposits with banks and financial institation. An impairment analysls is performed at
sach reporting date on the basis of sales channel. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped and assessed for impairment collectively.

Trade receivables:
The Company aperates on business model of primarily cash and carry, credit risk from receivable perspective is insignificant. Customer credit sisk is managed basis established policies of Company,
pracedures and cantrols relating fo customer credit risk management. Qutstanding receivables are requiarly monitored,

Moreaver, the Company's custamer base is large and diverse limiting the risk arising out of eredit concentration.

Other remaining financial assets:

tnvestments, in the form of fixed deposits, of surpius funds are made generally with banks & financial institutions and within credit fimits assigned to sach counterparty.

Credit risk in respect far security deposit given for premises taken on lease are tracked by carrying specific analysis of all parties at each reporting period. Historically loss on security deposits are
immaterial. Therefore, based on past and forward-looking information avallable with management and to the best estimate of management, the Company believes that exposure to credit risk on
other remaining financial assets s not material.

Eiquidity sk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financiaf assets. The
Company manages its fiquidity risk on the basis of the business plan that ensures that the funds required for financing the business operations and meeting fimancial liabilities are available in a
timely marner. The Management requiarly manitars rolling forecasts of the Com pany's liquidity position ta ensure it has sufficient cash on an ongoing basis to meet operational fund requirements.
The surplus cash generated, aver and above the operational fund requirement is invested in bank depasits and mutual fund schemes of highly liquid nature to optimize cash returns while ensuring
adequate liquidity for the Cempany. The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flaxibility thraugh the use of bank borrowings . The Company bslieves that
cash generated from operations, capital raised thraugh issue of shares to Holding Company, working capital management and available sources from raising funds (including additional barrowings,
if amy) as needed will satisfy its cash flow raquirement through at teast the next twelve months.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The contractual cash flow amounts are gross and undiscounted:

T in lakhs
Cantractual cash flows
Financial liabilities Carrying Within 1 year Tto5 years More than 5 Total
amount years

As at March 31, 2024
Barrowings 10,156.61 6,819.21 3,387.67 - 10,206.88
Lease Liabilities (Refer note 29) 1774718 3561982 11.778.57 11,754.38 27,15327
Trade payables 5141.30 5,141.50 - 514190
Other financial liabilities 38852 388.52 388.52

33,434.21 15,969.45 15,166.24 11,754.88 42,890.57
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Financial instruments - fair value measurements and risk management (continued)

As at March 11, 2023

Borrowings 10,181.15 6,261.95 3,866.32 106.57 10,234.84
Lease Liahilities (Refer note 29) 1500347 3,348.01 11,007 47 7,004.05 21,35953
Trads payables 5,147.42 514742 - - 514742
Other financial liabilities 35846 358,46 - - 35846

30,690.50 15,115.84 14,873.79 711061 37.100.24
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of financial instruments may fluctuate because of changes in market conditions, Market risk broadly comprises three types of risks mamely
currency risk, interest rate risk and security price risk. The Company does not have any external currency exposure and thus currency risk is not applicabie to the Company.

The Company invests its surplus funds mainly in shart term liquid schemes of bank fixed deposits. The Company manages its price risk arising from these investments through diversification and by
placing limits on individual and total equity instruments / mutual funds,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate. The Company's exposure ta the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates to primarily to company's borrowing with floating interest rates.

Exposute to interest rate risk

T in lakths
As at As at
Particulans March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings bearing variable rate of interest 10,756.61 10,181.15

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity te a reasonably possible change in interest rates on affected portion of loans and borrowings, With all other variables held constans, the Company's
profit before tax is affected through the impact on varlable rate borrowing as follows:

A changa of 50 bps In Interest rates would have following Impact on profit before tax T inlakhs

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 Narch 31, 2023
50 bp increase- decrease in profits (50.78) (50.91)
50 bp decrease- increase in profits 50.78 5091

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital managsment, capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the
Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure while maximising shareholder value. Apart from internal acerual, sourcing of capital is done through
judicious cormhination of equity and borrowing, both short term and long term.

The capitaf structure of the Company is based on management's judgment of its strategic and day-te-day needs with a focus on fotal equity so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a gaing
concern and to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence.

The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable

The Company has incurred a loss after tax of Rs. 5,177.38 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024 and its current liabilities, including current borrowings, exceeds current assets by Rs. 8,249.15
lakhs as at March 31, 2024. The Company has access to unutilised credit fines with its bankers and also additional capital from its parent company, if and when required. Further, the Company has
been expanding its operations, expanding private brand and improvement of margins through dis-continuance of loss making/ low margin stores, etc. In view of the abeve factors, and the
approved business plan for the next year, the management is confident of its ability to generate sufficient cash to fulfil ail Tts cbiigations, including debt repayments, over the next 12 months,
consequent to which, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
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As at As at
39 Ratio Numeratoer Denominator March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 % change Reason for variance
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Lizbiiities 044 035 26% Variance due to increase in current assets
in current year.

Debt- Equity Ratlo Total Debt = Men-curent  Fotal equity NA# -1.28 NA#

barrawings + Current

Borrowings
Debt Service Coverage Earnings  before  interest  Debt service = Interest & Lease 022 o.M 2100% Variance due to reduction in EBIDTA.
ralio expenses, tax, depreciation Payments + Principal

and amertisation Repayments
Return on Equity ratic Net  Profits  after taxes Total equity NA# -70.56% NAZ

Preference Dividend
inventory Turnover ratic Average Inventory Revenue from operations 48.92 44.74 9%
{in days)
Trade Receivable Average Trade receivables Revenue from operations 492 323 52% Varlance on account of increase in average
Turnaver ratia (in days) trade receivable in current year.
Trade Payable Turnover Average Trade payabies Purchases of stock-in-trade B5.82 89.50 4%
ratic {in days)
Net Capital Turnaver Revenue from operations Waorking capital = Current assets -3.59 301 19% Variance due to increase in current liability
ratio - Cureent [izbilities in current year,
Net Loss ratio Met Loss Revenue from operations. -17.50% -20.54% -15% Variance on account of losses incurred in

current year.

Return  on  Capital Earnings  before  interest  Capital Employed = Total equity -0.75 -1.88 62% Variance on account of losses incurred in

Employed expenses and tax

# The ratis has not been calculated during the year ended March 31, 2024 as the total equity is negative for the year ended March 31, 2024

4D Other Statutory Information
[

Qther intangible assets + Total
Debt

The Cornpany does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(i} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iii) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financal year.

current year.

(iv) The Comparny has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), tncluding foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or atherwise) that the
Campany shal directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the Funding Parly (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any
guarantee, security or the fke on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

]

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persan{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall

directly or indirectly lend or invest in ather persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the

like to or on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vi) The Company has not surrenderad or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income duting the year.

{vii) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and ruies made

thereunder.

(wiii} The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers} Rules, 2017,
{ix) The Company is maintaining its baoks of accounts in electronic mode and these books of accounts are accessible in India at all times and the back-up of the baoks of accounts has been kept in

servers physically located in india on a daily basis.
(x

the Company. The Company is not required to file quartery return / statements for March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

{xf) The company has not been dedared wilful defaulter by any bank er financial institution or government or any gevernment authority.
(it} The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the requlations made by Reserve Bank of India. The Group has 4 Core Invesiment Companies as a part of the Group.

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 8s. five crores in aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions during the year an the basis of security of current assets of

41, The Company have used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording of audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated througheut the year fer
all refevant transeations recarded in the software except that audit trail feature is not enabled at the database level in s far it relates to the SAP and Point Of Sales (POS) accounting software.
Further, ne instance of audit trai! feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software was noted.
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